
PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

AGENDA 

February 22, 2011 



CITY OF OAK HARBOR       AGENDA 
PLANNING COMMISSION February 22, 2011 
REGULAR MEETING   7:30 P.M. 
CITY HALL – COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 
 
ROLL CALL: NEIL      JENSEN    FAKKEMA      
 

WASINGER       OLIVER   
    
   WALLIN   
 
 
  
1. Approval of Minutes – January 25, 2011 – Page 3 
 
  
2. Public Comment – Planning Commission will accept public comment for items 

not otherwise on the agenda for the first 15 minutes of the Planning Commission 
meeting.  
 
Page 12 

3. PROPOSED CHANGES TO CHAPTER 21.80 OHMC PERTAINING TO 
BINDING SITE PLANS – Public Hearing (continued) 
Development Services staff will present a revised draft of changes to Chapter 
21.80 of the Oak Harbor Municipal Code which will establish a process for 
altering previously approved Binding Site Plans. The Public Hearing was opened 
on December 28, 2010. The Planning Commission may close the hearing and 
make a recommendation to the City Council.  
 

 Page 55 
4. LOW IMPACT DEVELOPMENT (LID) CODE UPDATE PROJECT – Public 

Hearing 
In January, 2011 staff presented the “staff draft” of the proposed LID code to 
Planning Commission. The staff draft represents two years of work by staff and 
Planning Commission about how the community should approach LID and 
contains new code provisions pertaining to streets, landscaping, and grading 
practices. In February, staff will continue discussions with Planning Commission 
about the draft code and Planning Commission may open a public hearing 
following the discussion. 
 

 
 

1



MINUTES 

 

January 25, 2011 

2



 

Planning Commission  
January 25, 2011 

Page 1 of 5 

PLANNING COMMISSION       
REGULAR MEETING 
CITY HALL – COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
January 25, 2011 
 
ROLL CALL: Present:  Kristi Jensen, Keith Fakkema, Greg Wasinger, Gerry Oliver and 

Jeff Wallin. Absent: Bruce Neil. Staff Present:  Development Services 
Director, Steve Powers; Senior Planner Ethan Spoo; and Associate Planner; 
Melissa Sartorius  

 
Chairman Neil called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m.  
 
MINUTES: MR. WASINGER MOVED, MR. OLIVER SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED 

TO APPROVE THE DECEMBER 28, 2010 MINUTES AS PRESENTED. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  No comments. 
 
PROPOSED CHANGES TO CHAPTER 21.80 OHMC PERTAINING TO BINDING SITE 
PLANS – Public Hearing (continued) 
Mr. Spoo summarized research and presented concepts for further discussion. 
 
Mr. Spoo reported that State law requires an alteration process for binding site plans (BSP) and 
currently the City does not have an alteration process.  State law also indicates that all 
development within a binding site plan shall be consistent with the approved binding site plan.  
Local jurisdictions are given the latitude and flexibility to shape that process to meet local 
circumstances. 
 
Mr. Spoo reported that staff looked at 13 other jurisdictions across the State and found that 8 
jurisdictions require all property owners within a BSP to sign a binding site plan alteration, and 5 
jurisdictions require something less than all of the property owners to sign.  Mr. Spoo further 
stated that staff believes that a balance is needed which allows for alterations but respects the 
rights of property owners within a BSP.  Mr. Spoo stated that staff is proposing a two-tier 
process for requesting alterations to BSP’s based on the findings and comments received at the 
last Planning Commission meeting.   
 
Tier 1 provides for BSP’s which exist at the time the code is adopted, assuming the code is 
adopted those BSP’s would require the signatures of all owners within the BSP in order for an 
alteration to be made. Tier 2 would provide for future BSP’s.  Those BSP’s would require the 
signatures of only the property owners whose lots are proposed to be altered. 
 
In addition to the two-tier process, staff is recommending a change in requirements regarding 
what is shown on the binding site plan map.  Only those things which are in the public interest 
would be shown on the BSP map. The existing BSP map requirements have required 
information which is not in the public interest to be recorded on the binding site plan. Once that 
information gets recorded, the City must settle disputes between property owners, even if those 
disputes don’t pertain to the public interest.  By reducing the requirements for what is shown on 
the binding site plan map, the City won’t be in the position in deciding between private issues 
between property owners. 
  
Mr. Spoo concluded by recommending that the Planning Commission accept public testimony 
and continue the hearing to February 22, 2011. 
 

3



 

Planning Commission  
January 25, 2011 

Page 2 of 5 

Mr. Fakkema opened the public hearing. 
 
Bill Massey (41 NE Midway Blvd. Ste. 101) pointed out that OHMC 21.80.200 allows for minor 
modifications and has been used for minor modifications in the past.  Mr. Massey supported 
keeping the existing code in place.  Mr. Massey also used the Oak Tree Village Binding Site 
Plan as an example to demonstrate how a modification could be stopped by one person even 
though their lot may not even be connected. Mr. Massey also pointed that some of the Goldie 
Road properties that may be annexed in the future already have binding site plans through the 
County.  Mr. Massey stated that there were more implications to the proposed changes than just 
the specific binding site plan that was discussed at the previous meeting. 
 
Kenneth Manny (2094 SW Dillard Lane) stated he was property owner within the Oak Tree 
Village BSP.  He noted that this BSP is separated by Cabot Drive and that making changes, 
minor or otherwise, would require him to get the consent of the property owners on the other 
side of Cabot Drive.  Mr. Manny stated that the issue was of procedural fairness for people that 
own property in a situation where the interest of one group of owners is entirely different and 
separate from the interest of another group of owners.  Mr. Manny believed if the Planning 
Commission were to adopt the plan that requires 100 percent unanimity; it would stop any type 
of development or modifications.  Mr. Manny stated that it gives a disproportionate advantage to 
persons who simply say no for the reasons of saying no or they’re to busy to read the document 
or they are not inclined to be cooperative or worst yet they want to get something out of it in 
exchange for their willingness to cooperate even though they are in no way affected.  Mr. Manny 
asked the Planning Commission to carefully consider the options so that we don’t find ourselves 
in a position where people with a legitimate interest in making a change to a BSP are essentially 
thwarted simply because it is impossible to get 100 percent unanimity among all of the owners.  
Mr. Manny stated that Oak Tree Village was a perfect example of why 100 percent unanimity 
can never be enforced and be fair at the same time.   
 
Mr. Powers commented that the ideas that have been presented are only concepts at this stage 
and there is no specific daft language before the Planning Commission at this time. 
 
Mel Vance (PO Box 2882) stated that he was torn between requiring a simple majority or a 
super majority and he was in favor of everyone having input regarding a BSP amendment.  He 
also stated that he didn’t think Oak Tree Village was a good example because he believed it 
was an extremely unusual situation to have a BSP that is split by a street.  He suggested that 
Oak Tree Village be split into two BSP’s if possible. 
 
Chris Anderson (390 NE Midway Blvd.) stated that he was also a property owner within Oak 
Tree Village.  Mr. Anderson read from RCW 58.17.035 and noted that it singles out commercial 
and industrial binding site plans and says that the approval for improvements and finalization of 
specific individual commercial or industrial lots shall be done by administrative approval. Mr. 
Anderson suggested treating commercial/industrial and residential BSP’s separately as the 
RCW seems to do.   
 
Bob Severns (1085 SE Regatta Dr., C201) agreed that common ownership of facilities such as 
driveways, parking spaces and stormwater facilities is appropriate and are commonly found in 
BSP’s.  Mr. Severns also noted that BSP’s get changed even without alteration language by 
getting the proper parties together and execute documents to allow the change.  Mr. Severns 
asked that the Planning Commission to not be confused that BSP’s can’t be changed because 
they can.  Mr. Severns urged the Planning Commission not to make it too easy to change a 
BSP because to say that we’re going to change the BSP and we’re going to ignore the other 
parties even though they purchased their properties after the fact is not something the City 
wants to do.  Mr. Severns pointed out that the majority of the 13 jurisdictions require all parties 

4



 

Planning Commission  
January 25, 2011 

Page 3 of 5 

to participate in alterations.  Mr. Severns agreed with a simpler BSP process on a go-forward 
basis but suggested that there needs to be a proper search done on people that have an 
interest in the property and they need to be included in major alterations.  
 
Sue Karahalios (1085 SE Regatta Dr., B-101) thanked staff for acknowledging that there are 
rights given to those that have an existing BSP.  She also appreciated that there is consistency 
in how people are treated.  She supported having all the owners involved in a BSP alteration. 
 
Tom Moser (1204 Cleveland Ave., Mount Vernon WA) detailed his background and experience 
in land use law.  Mr. Moser pointed out that the option to say that everyone gets to vote and you 
have to have 100 percent  gives tremendous veto power to somebody who may own a lot or 
have an interest in a piece of property.  He encouraged the Planning Commission to reconsider 
that option.   
 
Mr. Moser noted that the language proposed uses the term “restrictive covenants”.  He asked if 
the term meant the face of the BSP or does it mean the CC&R’s or the declarations of CC&R’s. 
He suggested defining the term. 
 
Mr. Moser stated that the City should divide between public and private as Mr. Spoo has 
suggested.   
 
Mr. Moser presented a letter dated November 3, 2004 from the City of Oak Harbor’s City 
Attorney Phil Bleyhl (Attachment 1).  Mr. Moser noted the following points Mr. Bleyhl made in 
the letter: 

• The City should not be in the business of deciding ownership. 
• Minor modifications to BSP’s are allowed under the code. 
• Sign-off by parties to the BSP is not necessary because it gives too much control.   

 
Mr. Moser noted that there is a history of the City doing fine on amending BSP’s until very 
recently.  The BSP amendments were done administratively and he didn’t see any reason that 
couldn’t continue. 
 
Mr. Moser concluded by stating that just because somebody hasn’t built on a lot yet doesn’t 
make it the property of the people who have built and that doesn’t transfer ownership to 
somebody who hasn’t purchased the land. 
 
Being not further public comment, Mr. Fakkema closed the public hearing. 
 
Commission Discussion 
Commissioners asked the following questions: 
 
How many jurisdictions were looked at?  Mr. Spoo said staff only looked at jurisdictions that had 
the information readily available on the internet which are the 13 jurisdictions listed in the staff 
report.  
 
Did staff also consider commercial verses residential BSP’s?  Mr. Powers said that staff did 
consider whether it is necessary to have a different process for commercial and industrial BSP’s 
and BSP’s used for condominiums but tried an approach that covers all the bases with a single 
set of procedures and then deal with the specifics of each application as they come forth. 
 
The public hearing was continued to February 22, 2011. 
 

5



 

Planning Commission  
January 25, 2011 

Page 4 of 5 

PRELIMINARY DOCKET FOR THE 2011 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENTS – Public 
Hearing 
Mr. Powers reported the City followed advertising procedures to inform the informing the public 
of the amendment cycle and called for applications. The City received no request for privately 
sponsored land use map amendments.  Therefore, the docket has two items; the annual Capital 
Improvements Plan update and staff will continue to work on the UGA capacity analysis.  In 
2011, City staff will work with the County on furthering the analysis.  It is not anticipated that 
there will be any actual Comprehensive Plan amendments coming out of the continuation of the 
UGA capacity analysis.  Mr. Powers summarized the staff report which details the criteria for 
considering items for the docket and a draft City Council resolution for the proposed docket.  Mr. 
Powers concluded by recommending that the Planning Commission conduct the public hearing 
and recommend that the City Council approve the proposed docket for the 2011 
Comprehensive Plan amendments. 
 
The public hearing was opened. No comments came forth and the public hearing was closed. 
 
ACTION: MR. OLIVER MOVED, MS. JENSEN SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED TO 

FORWARD A RECOMMENDATION THAT THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVE 
THE PROPOSED DOCKET FOR THE 2011 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
AMENDMENTS. 

 
LOW IMPACT DEVELOPMENT (LID) CODE UPDATE PROJECT – No Action Required 
Mr. Spoo reviewed the concept of Low Impact Development and the project background.  Mr. 
Spoo explained that LID is stormwater practices which mimic natural hydrologic cycle through 
the use of rain gardens, pervious pavement, native vegetation (Infiltration).  Traditional 
stormwater management uses ponds and pipes (conveyance). 
 
Mr. Spoo said that the reason for LID is the Puget Sound cleanup efforts by the State.  There 
are also advantages to property owners and the community.  By moving away from traditional 
stormwater practices to LID it reduces the amount of public stormwater infrastructure that the 
community has to maintain and in certain cases, the use of LID instead of a stormwater pond 
could open up more of the site to development. 
 
Mr. Spoo summarized the project background as follows: 

• Project start – late 2007 with grant award 
• 2008 – Consultant drafted code 
• 2009 – Staff reviewed code 
• Early 2010 – Work with Planning Commission 
• Late 2010 – Staff drafts code 
 

Mr. Spoo summarized the proposed code changes as follows: 
 
Title 11 “Streets” 

• Changes to match subdivision code 
• Provisions for LID in streets, sidewalks, driveways. Two new LID street sections 

Title 19 “Zoning” 
• Chapter 19.44 “Parking” 

 Maximum parking standard – 150% minimum 
 Variance required for more than 150% of minimum 
 Pervious surface for 125% or more 

• Chapter 19.46 “Landscaping and Screening” 
 Tree retention is rolled into native vegetation areas 

6



 

Planning Commission  
January 25, 2011 

Page 5 of 5 

 Advantages over tree retention concept: 
o Cross over with critical areas and landscape areas 
o Focus on area instead of number 

• Chapter 19.47 “Clearing and Grading” 
 Performance standards – the how and when of grading. 

 Phased grading – where possible 
 Dust suppression 
 Preserve duff layer 
 Approval required for wet season grading 

• Title 21 – “Subdivisions” 
 New street sections consistent with Title 11 
 Corridor buffers as LID facilities 

 
Mr. Spoo reported that future scheduling could be as follows: 
 

• February – Revisions by staff, pending PC comments. 
• February – Open public hearing. Possible recommendation to Council? 
• March – present to council, Council hearing. 
• April – adoption by Council 

 
Commission Discussion 
Commissioners asked the following questions: 
 
Why is the entire development cleared when some of the lots are not built on for a long time? 
Mr. Spoo said that it is cheaper to have the grading equipment on site one time rather than 
bringing the equipment back.  In some cases, developers specify a phasing plan and there may 
be a few years between phases.  In that case, it may be more appropriate to have phased 
grading. 
 
Does the City offer any incentives to encourage phased grading?  Mr. Spoo said that there were 
none at this point.  Mr. Powers said it was an interesting idea that the City could consider.  Mr. 
Powers also explained that the mass grading that occurs relates to the installation of the utilities 
as well.  Depending upon how the subdivision is being served by utilities and where those utility 
lines may be; there is a need to grade more than what you might see in the first phase of 
building.  But that doesn’t mean there can’t be some ways that we might see to limit that grading 
through this kind of ordinance. 
 
Forty years ago developers saved trees and built around the trees. What has changed that 
makes it necessary to clear the entire site?  Mr. Powers said that two things have changed; lot 
size and home size.  Over the years we have seen lot sizes get smaller and home sizes get 
larger.  When there was a smaller home on a larger lot it was possible and made good sense to 
grade just the area that for the home. 
 
Where does the oil and sludge from the run-off go?  Mr. Spoo said that it goes into the rain 
garden or the bioretention area.  The oil settles into the soil and there are microbes that break 
down the hydrocarbon naturally into something that is not harmful to the environment. 
 
Is this something the County is adopting as well?  Mr. Spoo said that the County received the 
same grant and they are just now starting to look at LID. 
 
BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS BEFORE THE PLANNING COMMISSION, THE MEETING 
WAS ADJOURNED AT 9:08 P.M. 
 

7



8



9



10



Proposed Changes  

to 

Chapter 21.80 Binding Site Plan 

 

Public Hearing 

(continued from 1-25-11) 

11



February 22, 2011 Binding Site Plan Code Amendments 
Page 1 of 5 

 Date: February 22, 2011   
 Subject: Binding Site Plan Code  

Amendments   
 
 
 
FROM: Steve Powers, Director and Ethan Spoo, Senior Planner 
  
 
PURPOSE 
At its February meeting, Planning Commission will be in the third month of discussions 
regarding amendments to the binding site plan (BSP) code. This report continues those 
discussions where they left off in January. The code amendments, if approved, would establish a 
process for altering previously approved BSPs. With this report, staff presents the second draft of 
the code for the Planning Commission’s consideration. 
 
AUTHORITY 
RCW 58.17.035 grants cities the authority to adopt by ordinance procedures for the division of 
land by use of a binding site plan. Should a city chose to adopt such an ordinance, is required to 
provide for the alteration or vacation of BSPs. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Binding Site Plans 
State law provides for the BSP process as an alternative means of subdividing property. This 
method is typically used in commercial shopping centers, industrial parks and residential 
condominiums where individual ownership of specific buildings or spaces is desired and where 
common ownership of other facilities is appropriate (e.g. driveways, parking spaces, 
landscaping, and stormwater facilities).  
 
The Municipal Code includes a chapter devoted to binding site plans (OHMC 21.80). A recent 
review of this existing language found that it does not specifically or adequately address 
alterations. Staff notes this review was the result of a recent application seeking to alter a 
previously approved binding site plan. 
 
January 25, 2011 Planning Commission Meeting 
Discussion concepts presented by staff at the January meeting introduced a two-tiered system 
whereby alterations to BSPs already in existence would require the signatures of all property 
owners within that BSP. All future BSPs would require that only those property owners whose 
lots are proposed to be altered sign the alteration application.  
 
Planning Commission accepted testimony in an open public hearing based on the concepts 
presented by staff. Two distinctly different opinions were voiced by those who gave testimony: 
(1) those who believe that the signatures of all property owners within a BSP should be required 
to make alterations and (2) those who believe that signatures of less than all property owners 
within a BSP should be required (i.e. only those whose lots are proposed to be altered). The 
former group pointed out that a BSP, by its very nature, sets up expectations by property owners 

 

City of Oak Harbor 
Planning Commission Report

12



February 22, 2011 Binding Site Plan Code Amendments 
Page 2 of 5 

of the need for consistency with that BSP. The latter group expressed concern that requiring all 
signatures would effectively prevent any changes to BSPs since one reluctant property owner 
could halt an alteration. 
 
More detail on the public comments is available in the January 25, 2011 Planning Commission 
meeting minutes. 

 
DISCUSSION 
Additional Research 
Based on comments received at last month’s Planning Commission meeting, staff conducted 
additional research regarding how other communities around the state process alteration 
requests, as well as the nature of BSPs in Oak Harbor. 
 
At last month’s meeting, staff presented research from 13 communities distinguishing between 
those who require all property owners within a BSP to sign and those which require less than all 
to sign alteration applications. This month staff researched additional communities increasing the 
total number to 59. Of the 59 communities researched, 11 communities either do not have a BSP 
process or an alteration process. Of the 48 communities which do have a process, 39 (81%) 
require signatures by all property owners within the BSP to make alterations. However, we 
should proceed with caution in drawing conclusions from this information. Most of the 
jurisdictions in this category have code language stating that the same process shall be used for 
alterations as for submitting the original binding site plan application.  The two actions are 
treated the same. It is not clear from this research whether or not any of these jurisdictions have 
encountered any difficulty in implementing this approach to alterations. This research also does 
not give any insight in to whether the other jurisdictions’ application procedures are guided by 
policy, rather than code.  See Attachment 1 for further detail. 
 
Staff also looked into the number and type of BSPs within the Oak Harbor city boundaries. 
There are 13 BSPs in city boundaries, ten of which are commercial/industrial BSPs and three of 
which are residential condominiums. Only one BSP within the city has a construction schedule 
associated with it. See map in Attachment 2. 
 
Topics for Consideration 
The following topics are offered for the Planning Commission’s consideration as you review the 
second draft of the amended code:  

• The City must have an alteration or vacation process.  It bears repeating that the City 
of Oak Harbor is required under RCW 58.17.035 to provide a process for property 
owners to seek to alter or vacate portions or all of an approved binding site plan.   

• Submittal of an application is the beginning, not the end, of the process.  It is 
important to note that the proposed code amendment is primarily intended to put into 
place a process by which applications for alterations may be submitted and considered.  
The process only begins with the receipt of the application.  The review of the alteration 
application is deemed a Type II process (an administrative decision, requiring notice to 
the general public and property owners within 300 feet).  This administrative decision is 
appealable to the City’s Hearing Examiner. 

13



February 22, 2011 Binding Site Plan Code Amendments 
Page 3 of 5 

• Varying property owner interests.  At the January 25, 2011 Planning Commission 
meeting, one of the central issues (based on public testimony) was the topic of varying 
property owner interests.  At issue is whether a single property owner, or group of 
property owners, should be able to submit an application for a binding site plan alteration 
without first securing the permission (in the form of signatures on the application) from 
all property owners within the binding site plan.   

• A BSP is a method of dividing land (public versus private interests).  The binding site 
plan process is a means of dividing property; it is the approval of this land division that is 
the ‘public interest.’  The existing code language requires certain information to be 
included on a binding site plan map that is not necessarily directly related to this purpose.  
Some of this information may be regulated by other permit procedures (such as through a 
site plan and design review approval per OHMC 19.48) or it may be in the form of 
private agreements (covenants) between property owners. It is staff’s belief that the City 
should not be adjudicating private interest issues, but should focus on issues clearly in the 
public interest. 

• Research findings. Staff research shows that the majority of jurisdictions choose to 
require the signatures of all property owners within a BSP for alterations (by way of 
stating the procedure for alterations is the same as for original approval). It is unclear 
from this research whether or not requiring all property owners within a BSP to sign has 
led to problems. In other words, these cities should not necessarily be looked at as 
directly applicable models for the City of Oak Harbor. Staff research also shows that the 
City has relatively few BSPs and most of the BSPs are commercial or industrial.  The 
staff recommendation seeks to create a process that will work with existing and future 
binding site plans. 

 

SUMMARY OF SECOND DRAFT OF CODE 

The second draft of the code responds to the above topics.  The code has the following features: 

• Limit what is recorded on BSP map documents. In order that the City focus its role on 
the subject land division and what is in the public interest, the language proposed by staff 
will limit what is recorded on future BSP map documents. Staff is proposing to limit 
what is recorded on a binding site plan map to those items which pertain directly to land 
division; primarily lots and their dimensions, rights-of-way, easements (access, parking, 
open space, etc.), and public utilities (sewer, water, storm). 

• The City will only accept alterations that pertain to the public interest. As a way of 
distinguishing between public (land division) and private interests, the City will only 
accept an alteration application if it pertains to the items recorded on a binding site plan 
map. Since the items which are recorded on a binding site plan map are being limited, as 
per the first bullet above, staff believes this will focus the City on those items in the 
public interest. 

Binding site plans approved prior to the date of the new ordinance include items not 
pertaining directly to land division. In recognition of this fact, the City will accept 
alterations to already established binding site plans for elements such as zoning setback 
lines, building envelopes, parking areas, general circulation, landscaping areas, proposed 

14



February 22, 2011 Binding Site Plan Code Amendments 
Page 4 of 5 

use, location of buildings, and loading areas. 

• Alteration applications may be submitted by only those property owners who are 
directly affected. At its January meeting, Planning Commission accepted public 
testimony indicating that requiring all signatures for BSP changes could limit private 
property rights as well as create a process which may be impossible for a property owner 
to initiate.  On the other hand, the Commission also heard testimony that those property 
owners who may be directly affected by the proposed alteration should have a role in 
determining whether the amendment is submitted.  After reviewing this testimony, other 
codes and weighing the pros and cons of different approaches, the staff recommends that 
only those property owners directly affected by the proposed alteration be required to 
sign the application. In some cases, this may be only one property owner if a change 
directly affects only his lots (e.g. the alteration of a property line or easement). In other 
cases, this may require the signatures of multiple property owners who may be affected, 
as would be the case if an alteration to a shared parking facility were proposed.  Each 
alteration application would need to be accompanied by a title company certification 
proving ownership, and therefore, ability to submit the application.  It is staff’s opinion 
that this process is the most appropriate given all the information at our disposal. 

 
CITIZEN COMMENTS 
The Chair of the Planning Commission received a letter from Mr. Christian Anderson on behalf 
of Dry Lake Land Stewardship, LLC. Dry Lake Land Stewardship has been planning a new 
commercial development, which is partly within the Oak Tree Village Binding Site Plan. It is 
Mr. Anderson’s opinion that alterations to a BSP should require the signatures of only the 
property owners directly affected. His contention is that requiring additional signatures may 
constitute a “taking” of private property and could hinder economic development within the 
City. 
 
The Chair of the Planning Commission also received a letter from Mr. William Massey. In that 
letter, Mr. Massey expressed his opposition to requiring all property owners within a BSP to sign 
alterations. He proposed two alternative ways to process an alteration application: (1) by vote of 
the majority of the property owners contiguous to and directly affected by the proposed 
alteration and (2) a minor/major system whereby minor alterations would be decided 
administratively by staff and major alterations would be decided by the City’s hearing examiner. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

• Accept public testimony and close the public hearing. 
• Recommend approval to City Council of the amendments to Chapter 21. 80 OHMC 

(“Binding Site Plans”) as drafted in Attachment 5. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

• Attachment 1 – Binding Site Plan Alterations: Signatures Required by Washington 
Jurisdictions. 

• Attachment 2 – Map of binding site plans in Oak Harbor. 
• Attachment 3 – Letter from Mr. Christian Anderson, Dry Lake Land Stewardship, LLC 
• Attachment 4 – Letter from Mr. William Massey 

15



February 22, 2011 Binding Site Plan Code Amendments 
Page 5 of 5 

• Attachment 5 – Draft amendments to Chapter 21.80 OHMC (“Binding Site Plans”) 
(Please note that both a legislative edit version and a ‘clean’ version are provided.) 

16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



Legislative Edit Version 

Draft Amendments to  

Chapter 21.80 OHMC  

“Binding Site Plans” 

30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



“Clean” Version 

Draft Amendments to  

Chapter 21.80 OHMC  

“Binding Site Plans” 

42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



Low Impact Development (LID) 

Code Update 

 

Public Hearing 

 

54



January 25, 2011 LID Code Update 
Page 1 of 2 

 Date: February 22, 2011  
 Subject: LID Code Update  
 
 
 
FROM: Ethan Spoo, Senior Planner 
  
 
PURPOSE 
In February, Planning Commission will continue its discussion of the proposed amendments to 
Oak Harbor Municipal Code Titles 11, 19, and 21 to allow for and encourage Low Impact 
Development (LID). The discussion began in January with staff introducing the “staff draft” of 
the proposed code. This month, staff is recommending that Planning Commission open a public 
hearing on the draft code. 
 
AUTHORITY 
RCW 36.70A.040 gives cities legislative authority to adopt development regulations in 
conformance with their comprehensive plans. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Last month, staff briefed Planning Commission on the proposed “staff draft” of the LID code. 
The proposed amendments, if adopted, would affect Titles 11 (“Streets”), 19 (“Zoning”), and 21 
(“Subdivisions”). The following bullets summarize the changes to each of the code titles: 

• Title 11 Streets. There are many changes to this title, but most of the changes simply 
bring Title 11 back into conformance with Title 21 which was amended in March, 2010. 
The substantive “LID” changes to this Title are: (1) language in Section 11.17.040 which 
permits LID stormwater management practices in streets, driveways, parking areas, 
private roads, bike paths, walkways, and patios and (2) two new LID residential street 
sections from which applicants may choose. 

• Title 19 Zoning. The changes to this title affect three chapters: 19.44 “Parking”, 19.46 
“Landscaping and Screening”, and 19.47 “Clearing and Grading.” The parking chapter is 
being amended to create a parking maximum, with a variance process. The landscaping 
chapter is being amended to require native vegetation areas in new development, 
including requirements for tree selection and maintenance. The clearing and grading 
chapter is being amended to include new grading best practices which will reduce 
siltation and pollution of stormwater. 

• Title 21 Subdivisions. This title is being amended to include two new LID street sections 
which match those in Title 11, as well as allowing for LID stormwater management 
facilities in corridor buffers. 

 
DISCUSSION 
Staff made one minor change to the code during the past month. The change pertains to the 
maximum parking standard in 19.44.105. So as to provide more flexibility for small businesses 
in Oak Harbor, the change would apply the maximum parking standard only to parking lots with 
a minimum of 50 requires spaces or more. 

 

City of Oak Harbor 
Planning Commission Report

55



January 25, 2011 LID Code Update 
Page 2 of 2 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 
As part of a public outreach effort for this project, staff sent a letter to contractors, builders, and 
developers who have done business with the City during the past few years. Staff received an e-
mailed comment from Mr. Corey Johnson of C. Johnson Construction Inc. regarding the topic of 
parking maximums and the requirement that all spaces over 125% of the minimum be pervious 
surface. In summary, Mr. Johnson believes that the City should offer more options than pervious 
surface for treatment of stormwater for parking spaces above 125% of the minimum. He also 
expressed support for native vegetation areas in terms of the potential flexibility they offer to 
property owners. See Attachment D. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that Planning Commission open a public hearing to discuss the proposed 
amendments to titles 11, 19, and 21 and continue this public hearing until March 22, 2011 
Planning Commission meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

• Attachment A – Draft ordinance amending Title 11”Streets” 
• Attachment B – Draft ordinances amending Title 19 “Zoning” 
• Attachment C – Draft ordinance amending Title 21 “Subdivisions” 
• Attachment D – E-mail from Mr. Corey Johnson regarding parking maximums 

56



Attachment A 

Draft ordinance amending Title 11 
“Streets” 

57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



Attachment B 

Draft ordinance amending Title 19 
“Zoning” 

71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



Attachment C 

Draft ordinance amending Title 21 
“Subdivisions” 

132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



Attachment D 

 E-mail  

from Mr. Corey Johnson  

 

164



165




